
Meeting contact Ruth Rimmington on 01257 515118 or email ruth.rimmington@chorley.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK GROUP - QUALITY 
OF HOUSING PROVIDED BY SOCIAL LANDLORDS
WEDNESDAY, 23RD JANUARY 2019, 6.30 PM
COMMITTEE ROOM 2, TOWN HALL, CHORLEY

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2 MINUTES OF MEETING THURSDAY, 13 SEPTEMBER 2018 OF 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK GROUP - QUALITY OF 
HOUSING PROVIDED BY SOCIAL LANDLORDS  

(Pages 3 - 6)

3 MINUTES OF MEETING THURSDAY, 18 OCTOBER 2018 OF 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK GROUP - QUALITY OF 
HOUSING PROVIDED BY SOCIAL LANDLORDS  

(Pages 7 - 10)

4 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest 
in respect of matters contained in this agenda.

If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally 
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, 
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may 
remain in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave 
immediately. In either case you must not seek to improperly influence a 
decision on the matter.

5 ADDITIONAL RESPONSES FROM COUNCILLORS (Pages 11 - 12)

One additional response has been received and is enclosed. 

6 RESPONSES FROM PARTNERS (Pages 13 - 16)

Responses have been received from Chorley Help the Homeless and Sir 
Lindsay Hoyle.

  



7 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

To consider the exclusion of the press and public for the following items of 
business on the ground that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

By Virtue of Paragraph 3: Information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)
Condition:
Information is not exempt if it is required to be registered under-
The Companies Act 1985 
The Friendly Societies Act 1974 
The Friendly Societies Act 1992 
The Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978 
The Building Societies Act 1986 (recorded in the public file of any building 
society, within the meaning of the Act) 
The Charities Act 1993
Information is exempt to the extent that, in all the circumstances of the case, 
the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information.

Information is not exempt if it relates to proposed development for which the 
local planning authority may grant itself planning permission pursuant to 
Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992(a).

8 RESPONSES FROM REGISTERED PROVIDERS (Pages 17 - 66)

Responses have been received from Places for People, Chorley Community 
Housing and Onward.

9 DRAFT FINAL REPORT

To receive and consider the draft Final Report (to follow).

10 ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THAT THE CHAIR DECIDES IS/ARE URGENT  

GARY HALL 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group - Quality of housing 
provided by social landlords Councillor Matthew Lynch (Chair), and Councillors 
Yvonne Hargreaves, Margaret Lees, June Molyneaux, Alistair Morwood, Steve Murfitt and 
Kim Snape. 

If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or 
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk



Overview and Scrutiny Task Group - Quality of housing provided by social landlords Thursday, 13 September 2018

MINUTES OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK GROUP - QUALITY 
OF HOUSING PROVIDED BY SOCIAL LANDLORDS

MEETING DATE Thursday, 13 September 2018

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillor Matthew Lynch (Chair), Councillor  (Vice-Chair) 
and Councillors Yvonne Hargreaves, June Molyneaux, 
Alistair Morwood, Steve Murfitt and Kim Snape

OFFICERS: Fiona Hepburn (Housing Options and Support Manager) 
and Ruth Rimmington (Democratic and Member Services 
Team Leader)

18.16 Welcome

The Chair welcomed Councillor Yvonne Hargreaves as a new Member of the Task 
Group.  

18.17 Declarations of Any Interests

Councillors Matthew Lynch and Steve Murfitt declared a non-pecuniary interest in all 
items on the agenda.

18.18 Minutes

Members considered the minutes from the interviews with Jayne Hurley (Places for 
People) and Richard Houghton (Chorley Community Housing).  

The comments are summarised below: 

The Council has no powers to enforce change, but the Group has looked at working 
practices of RP’s to gauge best practice and issues which need to be addressed on 
behalf of Chorley residents.  

The Task Group has undertaken a survey and one RP has done their own survey and 
undertaken a survey of all their properties.  The Group has taken this as a positive 
step and notes that it is up to RPs to achieve an acceptable standard for their 
properties.

One of the recommendations is to create Chorley Good Homes Charter - a charter 
that RPs are encouraged to sign up to. 

Customer Service
 There should be provision for Councillors to use online portals on behalf of their 

residents.   

Agenda Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Overview and Scrutiny Task Group - Quality of housing provided by social landlords Thursday, 13 September 2018

 Customers should be involved in the complaints procedure.  Councillors expressed 
concern where there is no customer input and no peer support.  

 Complaints should be dealt with quickly; Members felt a quarterly meeting is too 
long for tenants to have to wait. 

 There is a need to have clear standards that all tenants are made aware of.  This 
manages expectations and should reduce complaints.   

 There should be a clear complaints procedure, including customer services and 
engagement. 

 It would be helpful to have a nominated person to deal with each complaint.  
 To have an agreed timescale by which the telephone is answered by a person. 
 To undertake and publish independent satisfaction surveys.  
 To target support for problem tenants.  

Communication and engagement 
 There is need for clear communication in relation to changes for tenants. 
 Residents should be informed about planned maintenance. 
 To make use of existing noticeboards.  
 Tenants should have input into the decision-making process for large and small 

scale investment.  This offers a voice for the local community. 
 Provision must be made for tenants who don’t go online, with the use of the 

telephone and where possible face to face.
 A regular forum for customers would be beneficial.  Potentially the Council could 

facilitate this with the use of Community Centres.  
 The Council could facilitate a regular meeting between the Council and Registered 

Providers.  
 Councillors would welcome an increase in communication about planned 

maintenance and events etc.  For example, a quarterly newsletter.
 Ward walks with ward Councillors are helpful. 

Property maintenance and standards 
 Is it reasonable to expect a kitchen to last 30 years?  
 Consideration should be given to energy efficiency.  
 It makes sense to undertake work when a property is void, such as replacing the 

boiler, windows and insulation. This ensures the property is of an agreed standard 
when the tenant takes on the property. 

 There should be a standard for emergency repairs, from point of report to fully 
completed repair should be completed within 2 days and guaranteed for a year.  
Examples like tape round a tap is not considered a permanent repair.

 Health and Safety should feature in the charter with reference to fire safety 
standards and carbon monoxide monitors.  The exterior of the properties, including 
paths should be included. 

 The Lettings and DLO team should work together to decorate and undertake large 
scale maintenance when a property is void where possible.  

Neighbourhood issues 
 There is a need for transparency on service charges and charges should be 

relevant to services residents are receiving, the number of grass cuts etc.  
 For £150 RMG provide a community centre,  play  areas  and  landscaping,  

compared  with  a  service  charge  of  £350.  

Agenda Page 4 Agenda Item 2



Overview and Scrutiny Task Group - Quality of housing provided by social landlords Thursday, 13 September 2018

 Valuing community safety and working with residents to resolve issues is 
paramount and working with partners, such as the Police, to ensure that the 
community lives in a safe environment.  

 The importance of assisting tenants all aspects of their tenancy agreements. 
 To be proactive in organising community tidy up sessions and encourage residents 

to take ownership of their properties.  The Council can support this.  

18.19 Chorley Tenant Survey - draft report

Members considered the results of the survey and noted that there will be a 
presentation from in:fusion (who undertook the survey) at the next meeting.  

18.20 Member Survey results

Members considered the results of the survey and noted variations in the responses 
received.  

18.21 Consideration of the scoping document

Members considered the scoping document and noted that the MP, Citizens Advice 
Bureaux and Help the Homeless have been contacted for their views.  These will be 
presented to a future meeting. 

The survey will be presented to the Task Group and the Registered Providers RP’s on 
18 October.  RP’s will be invited to provide their feedback either at the meeting, or 
following it.    

The draft final report will be considered at the following meeting on 8 November.  

18.22 Date of next meeting

18 October at 6.30pm. 

Chair Date 

Agenda Page 5 Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Task Group - Quality of housing provided by social landlords Thursday, 18 October 2018

MINUTES OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK GROUP - QUALITY 
OF HOUSING PROVIDED BY SOCIAL LANDLORDS

MEETING DATE Thursday, 18 October 2018

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillor Matthew Lynch (Chair), Councillor  (Vice-Chair) 
and Councillors Yvonne Hargreaves, Margaret Lees, 
June Molyneaux, Alistair Morwood and Kim Snape

OFFICERS: Fiona Hepburn (Housing Options and Support Manager) 
and Ruth Rimmington (Democratic and Member Services 
Team Leader)

APOLOGIES: Councillor Steve Murfitt

OTHER MEMBERS: Councillor Richard Houghton (Director of Operations, 
Chorley Community Housing), Jayne Hurley (Operations 
Manager- West, Places for People), Joanne Danaher 
(Head of Neighbourhoods & Leasehold, Onward Homes) 
and Michelle Peart-Simpson (Neighbourhood Delivery 
Manager, Onward Homes)

18.23 Welcome and introductions

The Chair, Councillor Matthew Lynch, welcomed everyone to the meeting and invited 
attendees to introduce themselves.  

Councillor Lynch explained that the purpose of the inquiry is to ensure that Chorley 
residents receive the best service and the highest standards.  

18.24 Declarations of Any Interests

Councillor Matthew Lynch declared a non-pecuniary interest in all items on the 
agenda.

18.25 Presentation of the Tenant Survey results

The Chair introduced Scott Butterfield and James Mulvaney from in:fusion Research.  
in:fusion were commissioned to undertake the survey in April 2018 with the aim of 
reviewing feedback from social housing tenants around customer service, property 
maintenance and standards and engagement.  

The survey was posted to 4,000 tenants, with an option to respond online.  This 
represents around two thirds of the properties owned by Registered Providers.  The 

Agenda Page 7 Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Task Group - Quality of housing provided by social landlords Thursday, 18 October 2018

survey ran for a four week period commencing in May, with 731 responses in total 
(18.3%).  This is considered a solid response rate for this type of survey.  

20.5% Chorley Community Housing
15.9% Places for People
18.1% Accent
13.4% New Progress
12.1% Onward

Customer service
 81.9% of tenants were satisfied with the initial speed of response with their HA.  
 72.1% of tenants were satisfied with the speed of progress/ resolution with their 

HA.  
 83.9% of tenants were satisfied with the helpfulness of staff at their HA.  
 79.5% of tenants were satisfied overall with how their contact is dealt with their 

HA.  

Members noted that the majority of the comments relate to maintenance.  “Whenever I 
need to report a repair, I am met with politeness and helpful advice to deal with any 
emergency”, “When you ring up about a repair it takes so long it can take up to a 
month before they come out and look at it. Then a couple of weeks before they do the 
job”.  

Property standards and maintenance
 72.9% of tenants were satisfied with the standard of their property when they 

moved in.  
 73.4% of tenants were satisfied with the general grounds maintenance and 

cleaning service for their communal areas.  
 77.8% of tenants were satisfied with the overall quality of their property.  
 75.8% of tenants were satisfied with the repairs and maintenance carried out on 

their property.  

Members noted that the majority of the comments relate to issues with repairs.  
“Nothing has been replaced in my property in 13 years. The standards have slipped a 
lot”, “Although the quality of the build of the property was excellent. There was 
however some confusion over the snagging that needed doing - any that took place - 
that was of poor quality & not in line with the standard of the property. Poor finish on 
numerous things”.  

Engagement and communication
 72.7% of tenants agree that their HA keep them well informed about their 

services.  
 60.5% of tenants agree that their HA provides opportunities for them to have 

their say.  
 52.7% of tenants agree that their HA listens and acts on feedback.  

The majority of comments relate to a lack of communication and complaints not having 
been dealt with.  “I would like our landlord to be more communicative and listen to 
tenants on what we need and improvements”, “They send out yearly information and I 
know I can contact them if I require any. I am happy with the service”.  

Agenda Page 8 Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Task Group - Quality of housing provided by social landlords Thursday, 18 October 2018

Members noted comments relating to possible improvements.  “It can sometimes hard 
to get hold of the housing association maybe text messaging service where you can 
text a concern or need would be better”, “Many elderly are not computer or tech savy. 
They need old-fashioned personal contact or contact by letter”, “Since we stopped 
having residents meetings I do not feel "in touch" with my landlord. Having lived here 
for so long my original agreement must be really outdate but I have never been offered 
an update”, “We used to get a newsletter every 3-4 months which had lots of 
information on it. But sadly we don't receive them anymore. I feel very strongly that 
communication within our housing association could be better much room for 
improvement”.

Neighbourhoods
 85.0% of tenants agree that their neighbourhood is a good place to live.  
 88.6% of tenants agree that they feel safe in their neighbourhood during the day.  
 76.3% of tenants agree that they feel safe in their neighbourhood during the 

night.  
 66.0% of tenants agree that anti-social behaviour is dealt with in their 

neighbourhood.

The majority of comments relate to their area being a nice place to live.  “My 
neighbourhood is very good with the exception of just two sets of neighbours”, “Until 
recently it was a nice, friendly quiet neighbourhood”, “This neighbourhood is supposed 
to be for over 55 year old. Last year a person in her 40s got a flat and has become a 
nuisance with her attitude”.  

Members noted the positive step some Registered Providers have taken in supporting 
the Youth Zone and the potential for this to reduce anti-social behaviour.  

Satisfaction with Registered Providers
84.4% Chorley Community Housing
70.9% Accent
67.2% Places for People

The majority of comments relate to satisfaction with maintenance and repairs.  
“Service is excellent. Properties are maintained to a high standard but allowed to 
make your property your own personal space”, “Repairs are done but not within a 
reasonable timescale”, “Basically paying for services which we don't get! And 
management fees for nothing!”

Future property needs
81.1% of tenants agree that their property meets their needs overall.  
83.5% Chorley Community Housing
77.1% Places for People
77.0% Accent

The majority of comments relate to looking for a new property elsewhere, in a quieter 
area or a different sized property.  Elderly tenants have raised the issue of wanting a 
garden.  “Due to my age will probably need ground
floor flat for my wife & I”, “Although we are happy with our flat and neighbours we 
would like to move into a bungalow with a small garden”, “I am content with my flat 
and hope to live here for many years”.  

Agenda Page 9 Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Task Group - Quality of housing provided by social landlords Thursday, 18 October 2018

In conclusion, there are generally high levels of agreement throughout the survey 
results.  Tenants would like to see maintenance and repairs completed quicker and 
older and disabled tenants were more likely to highlight requests to modifications to 
their properties or a change of property to meet their needs.  Members noted the 
Disabled Facilities Grant service provided by the Council.  

The Chair queried the demographic of respondents and noted that it is usual for older 
people to respond to a postal survey, with young people responding to an online 
survey.  

It was noted that the survey was sent to a random sample across the whole Borough 
and that it is possible for further analysis to be undertaken to identify the geographical 
areas where respondents lived, and also by age and length of tenancy.  

The Chair invited Registered Providers to make comments on the results of the survey 
and the presentation.  

Richard Houghton, Chorley Community Housing, queried if it is possible for those 
tenants who raised issues with repairs to be identified to enable the issues to be 
resolved.  As the survey is anonymous this is not appropriate.  Richard Houghton 
highlighted the need to focus on those tenants who are not satisfied.  

Members discussed the question relating to community safety and noted that it may 
be useful to undertake a further survey in a few years to enable benchmarking in this 
area.  

Joanne Danaher, Onward Homes, explained that the survey had not produced any 
surprises and that there is planned maintenance for the Mendip Road area.  

Councillor Lynch noted that it would be useful for the Task Group to cross reference 
the results with any surveys that the Registered Providers have undertaken, and 
requested that any surveys be shared.  

Members noted the importance of the wording of surveys and the need to ask 
balanced questions.  The order of questions is also important and the use of free text 
boxes encourages respondents to give further information.  

Jayne Hurley, Places for People, thanked the Task Group for the opportunity to attend 
the meeting.  Places for People were not supposed by the findings and have found the 
information useful.  The feedback will be reviewed and a written submission will be 
sent to the Task Group for the next meeting.  

The Chair advised that the next meeting, on 8 November, will consider the 
submissions from Registered Providers and partner organisations, and the draft final 
report.  The final report will be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
24 January and the Executive Cabinet on 14 February.  

Chair Date 

Agenda Page 10 Agenda Item 3



1

Ruth Rimmington

From: Cllr Steve Holgate

Sent: 26 November 2018 14:58

To: Ruth Rimmington

Cc: allcouncillors; Fiona Hepburn; Chris Sinnott

Subject: Re: Overview and Scrutiny Task Group - Quality of housing provided by social 

landlords

Hi Matthew, an obvious problem raised is the issue of parking both on and off street which I understand could do 

with looking at. I think the task group is the appropriate forum to discuss and seek possible solutions. I know it will 

never be wholly resolved but constructive discussions with partner organisation would I believe be a better way 

than NoM’s. 

 

Regards 

Steve Holgate 

Coppull Ward 

 

On 26 Nov 2018, at 14:38, Ruth Rimmington <ruth.rimmington@chorley.gov.uk> wrote: 

Good afternoon,  

Councillor Matthew Lynch, Chair of the above Task Group, has asked me to email all Members.   

  

You may recall that a survey was undertaken of all Councillors in May with the purpose of collecting 

information about issues with social housing raised by your residents, (numbers of complaints and 

the types off issues raised).   

  

If any further issues have arisen since the survey that you would like the Task Group to be aware of 

please email me a brief description let me know by Monday, 17 December.   

  

If there are any queries please contact me.  

With kind regards 

  

Ruth Rimmington 

Democratic and Member Services Team Leader  

Chorley Council 

 

 01257 515118 |  chorley.gov.uk 

Check out Chorley this Christmas with real ice skating in our Winter Wonderland, Chorley’s Santa 

Express, Astley Illuminated and more. Click here for details. 

 

You can make service requests online at chorley.gov.uk, and it’s even faster if you use 'My Account' 

  

Agenda Page 11 Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Page 13 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Q1 In the last 3 years, how many complaints have you received from residents living in social
housing about housing standards?

None 1 2-3 4-5 6-9 10+

What types of complaints are they? Please describe the issue(s).Q2
Incorrect banding on select move, damp/mould in property, delays in repairs, lack of clarity for the tenants 
responsibility for some repairs, inspectors not turning up or tenants feeling like their concerns are not being fully 
looked into

Q3 Over the last 3 years, would you say that the number of complaints you receive has....?
Increased Stayed about the same Decreased

How would you describe your relationship with Registered Providers in Chorley?Q4
Whilst individual staff members of providers try to be pro-active and responsive, the structure within some of the 
providers makes it hard to get effective and quick solutions.  There seems to be a lack of discretion that could be 
used to solve common problems, which often cause the greatest frustration and can lead to long drawn out disputes

Do you have any other comments to make about social housing in Chorley?Q5
Increasingly the providers seem remote
Overall lack of local knowledge that neighbourhood officers used to have 
There seems to have been a breakdown in communication with the police and other agencies, which tenants feeling 
isolated/vulnerable when there are other problems in an area

Thank you for taking the time to complete this survey.

Agenda Page 15 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 17 Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 19 Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 23 Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 55 Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 57 Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Agenda Page 63 Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 13 September 2018 of Overview and Scrutiny Task Group - Quality of housing provided by social landlords
	3 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 18 October 2018 of Overview and Scrutiny Task Group - Quality of housing provided by social landlords
	5 Additional responses from Councillors
	6 Responses from Partners
	Survey for partners MP

	8 Responses from Registered Providers
	Response PfP
	PfP Customer Feedback Policy 2017
	Response from CCH
	Response from Onward
	Onward Comments Compliments Complaints Policy


